
 Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - March 16, 2009 
 

 

 Page 1       

 
The regular meeting of the Township Council of the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, 
State of New Jersey was held on March 16, 2009 at 7:00 p.m. in the meeting room of the 
Township Hall, 2600 Bayshore Road, Villas, New Jersey. 
 
The Clerk announced that the meeting was being held in compliance with the Open Public 
Meetings Act and that adequate notice of the meeting had been provided according to law. 
 
The following members of Council were present for roll call taken by the Clerk: 
 
 Councilmember Thomas Conrad 
 Councilmember Wayne Mazurek 
 Councilmember Glenn Douglass 
 Deputy Mayor Kevin Lare 
 Mayor Michael Beck 
 
Also present: Anthony Monzo, Solicitor and Kathleen McPherson, Manager 
 
 WORK SESSION   

 
 Certificates of Recognition for Lower Township Recreation Wrestling Program 
Mayor Beck presented the coaches for the team Certificates of Recognition for their hard work 
and dedication to the program. 

  
 South Jersey Gas - Response to Questions from Saturday’s Public Information Meeting 
Mayor Beck said there was a huge turn out for the meeting and asked South Jersey 
Representatives to attend the council meeting to answer a few more questions. 
Michelle a representative from South Jersey Gas thanked Council for the use of the hall for their 
presentation and helping to present another energy option to the residents.  She also thanked 
Eileen Kreis of the Manager’s Office for her assistance. 
Mayor Beck said many people had questions regarding the $65.00 application fee. 
Todd Gordon from South Jersey Gas said he was present to answer the questions the resident 
had.  He said it was a unique situation, it was a large job and there wasn’t a main in the Villas.  
He said the objective was to identify the interested parties.  He said the contract read $65 non-
refundable fee and the application would be accepted and the fee would be held until it was 
determined that gas service would be made available.  He said the deposit offset the cost of 
permits for road openings.  A resident asked if the deposit was for mains or laterals.   
Mr. Gordon said it was a 2 step process, the main on the street and then to the house.   
A resident asked if his house was at the end of the street and people along the way didn’t want 
gas and he did, then what. 
Mr. Gordon said they were looking to put the gas in the most concentrated areas he said it was a 
cost to the company to run the lines.  He said there was no obligation to take the service.  He 
said they still would work on trying to get people and businesses hooked in. 
Mayor Beck said he appreciated them coming back to the Council Meeting and noted there 
would always be unanswered questions. 
Michelle said anytime anyone had a question to please call South Jersey Gas and if needed they 
would come again to a Township Meeting to answer any questions. 



 Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - March 16, 2009 
 

 

 Page 2       

Mayor Beck said people needed to realize there were cost involved to change some of their pipe 
work.   
Councilmember Conrad asked South Jersey Gas if the 0% loan would include lines to the 
house. 
Mr. Gordon said yes.  He said it was a long term project for South Jersey Gas and it was 
important all the information was out there.  He wanted to educate the consumer. 
Deputy Mayor Lare asked about the ordinance regarding opening a street after it had been 
paved. 
Manager McPherson said there wasn’t a moratorium and hasn’t had any problem with having the 
road restored. 
  
 2009 Budget Introduction Review - Leon Costello 
Mayor Beck thanked Leon Costello, Auditor, Lauren Read, CFO and Kathy McPherson, 
Manager.  He said they were doing things a little different.  He said Council was prepared to 
make little and big decisions.  He said it was going to be presented in a couple weeks and there 
would be a special meeting just for the budget.   
Mr. Costello said it was the introduction of the budget, three votes were needed and it was the 
official start for the budget season.  He said there were many horror stories going around.  He 
said costs were rising and revenues were decreasing.  The Township had a stable year, but still 
lost money like others.  The budget was in both CAPS. 
Mr. Costello said there was a proposed 1.8% increase, 5.9% on the levy and the prior years it 
was over double digits.  He stated the Township hasn’t had layoffs or furloughs.  The salary 
increases were only 4.1% compared to higher numbers in prior years.  The tax collection was up 
compared to others where their rate decreased.   He said they had to watch 2010 because it 
could be worse.  He said a lot more would be said on March 30th.    
 
 Council Review of Consent & Regular Agenda Items 
Councilmember Conrad said they would not be selecting members to the Mayor’s Advisory 
Board at the meeting.   
Deputy Mayor Lare said regarding the outfall pipe work could that be done in house. 
Manager McPherson said they may have to replace or cut a part of the pipe off.   
Deputy Mayor Lare asked if Ordinance #2009-05 was any expense to the Township.   
Solicitor Monzo said they agreed to pay any legal expenses incurred. 
 
Explanation of Property Acquisition and Conveyance of Property - BLk:410.01 Lots: 72.01, 72.04 
& 72.05 - Solicitor Monzo 
Solicitor Monzo said the last contract was very complicated 3 parties were involved and was a 
problem for County and Green Acres.  He said they met Friday and all agreed to do 2 
transaction on the same day.  The Township would acquire the property and then turn it over the 
same day to the County.   
Solicitor Monzo said he would have the contract for Council to review and wanted to close in 
April.  Council agreed to approve the ordinance on March 30th. 
 
 Public Questions/Comments on Consent Agenda Items 
Fred Long of Cold Spring asked when the budget and budget message be on the website. 
Manager McPherson said on Tuesday. 
John Skrowinski of North Cape May said the budget was hard to understand.  He asked it could 
be put in a pie chart form so it would be easy to understand.   



 Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - March 16, 2009 
 

 

 Page 3       

Mayor Beck said one of the goals was to have it simple and it will be discussed more on March 
30th and there would be charts then. 
Joe Winters asked if the Township was losing revenue on the tax rolls. 
Manager McPherson said when it becomes Open Space, yes. 
Mayor Beck said almost all of the property was wetlands. 
Mr. Winters said it was costing the Township money. 
Manager McPherson said she would let him know tomorrow. 
Mr. Winters said Fulling Mill Road was terrible and in bad shape. 
Ed Butler of Villas and Vice President of the Lower Township Taxpayers Association said he 
would like Council to take a hard line and a hard look.  He said he would like to see a 0% 
budget.   
Mayor Beck said 0% would be great to have, but decisions had to be made last year that would 
impact this year.  He would do the best the Township could do, but they have to balance what 
could be done and what impact it would be to the Township. 
Mr. Butler said the contracts passed in December really killed the Township. 
Mayor Beck agreed, it was  taken out of their hands.   
Jack Sparks of North Cape May said in Lower Township and other areas people had lost 40% 
property values.   Some people had lost 40% of their life savings.  The Federal Government for 
the first time was giving back money to wage earners and the tax increase would negate that. 
Mr. Sparks said the Elementary School had a 49% poverty rate at the school and a tax increase 
would kill those families.  He said many of the kids attended school for the meals.  He mentioned 
a group at the school that went around and fed some of the families and kids.  He said the 
school had a 0% increase and they lost 8 teachers and replaced them with 3.  He felt the 
Township should be able to do the same, they all had fat. 
Mr. Sparks said we could do it here specifically with the police.  He said he kept hearing the 
Township needed as many police as Middle Township and it wasn’t true.  Middle had 6,000 
more calls than Lower and the argument was bogus.  He said the Police Chief had a new vehicle 
that could go up to 135 mph and felt the Chief should have the oldest car in the fleet.  He felt 
that showed he wasn’t trying to be efficient.  He said there were 6 detectives they could use one 
of them on the street.  He said you didn’t need a first class officer at the school, use a class two. 
  
Mr. Sparks said if the police wanted to debate with him , he would be happy to do so.  He said 
when he was Mayor he doubled the Police Department. 
Mayor Beck said he understood a lot of his points. 
Mr. Sparks said he didn’t see how the Police budget could be reduced.  He said Councilmember 
Mazurek was to be commended for voting “no” on the police budget.  He said they might not get 
to zero, but they need less than 1.8%. 
Mayor Beck asked what 1.8% would be. 
Manager McPherson said it would be $470,000. 
Mayor Beck stated to get to a zero balance would almost be a reduction of $800,000.   He said 
they had to really look at the budget and have to balance safety.  He said they had been looking 
at who took cars home and where they were assigned. 
Janet Pitts asked if retirements could be projected for the next 5 years. 
Mayor Beck said they were hit with a $85,000 payout this year. 
Chief Donohue said he disagree with Jack Sparks.  He never said the land mass was larger, he 
said they had the DRBA, Airport, Fishing Fleets.  He said he can’t hire or fire and if he had to 
move someone from the School or detectives he would do that. 
Mayor Beck said people were tired.  He said it wasn’t a problem with the numbers, but what the 



 Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - March 16, 2009 
 

 

 Page 4       

Township paid.  He said ask if they would take a wage freeze.  He said changes had to be 
made. 
Chief Donohue said the police across the country were doing a lot for less. 
Mayor Beck said something had to be done with binding arbitration.  
Chief Donohue said as to the car the Chief’s office hadn’t had a new car in 16 years and an SUV 
couldn’t do 135 mph. 
Joe Winters asked if Council realized what the contracts would costs. 
Mayor Beck said when contracts were discussed Kathy in the past had a spread sheet and said 
when past contracts were settled the past Manager didn’t do any kind of spread sheet. 
Mayor Beck said that was the first thing they asked Kathy to do a spread sheet. 
Mr. Winters said he didn’t understand why certain Councilmembers didn’t abstain on the 
contract vote.  He commented  people couldn’t get a CAP. 
Mayor Beck said a lot of things were put in motion that couldn’t be stopped.   
Mr. Winters said if the people didn’t pay their taxes what would the Township do to pay the 
employees. 
Mayor Beck said they had to balance things, all the ills of the past weren’t going to go away in a 
year.  He stated binding arbitration was a problem.  He asked at what point do you reduce the 
police and DPW against the safety and health of the Township. 
Mr. Winters said you could always use the State Police.  He said many things were wrong and 
people were tired. 
Mayor Beck said those who use the State Police should pay their fair share.  He said there were 
going to be some compromises.   
Councilmember Mazurek said 1.8% increase was $54.00. 
Colleen Hughes asked how long the union contracts were. 
Mayor Beck said until 2010.  He mentioned at the April 6th Council Meeting Senator Van Drew 
would attend and it was a chance for people to tell the Senator how the mandates hurt the 
Township and the little people. 
Frank Sarraco of East Tampa Avenue said Middle Township had 4,000 less year round 
residents yet they received more in State Aid. 
Mayor Beck said it was a point to bring up to Senator VanDrew. 
   
 Consent Agenda 
Approval of Minutes March 2, 2009 
Application  NJ State Fireman’s Association - Nicholas Rambo, Villas Volunteer Fire 
Res. #2009-93  Payment of Vouchers, $2,113,720.27 
Res. #2009-94  Introduction of the 2009 Municipal Budget (Public Hearing &  

Adoption April 20.2009) 
Res. #2009-95  Resolution Revising Terms and Appointments of Certain  Zoning 

Board Alternate Members (Changes the member appointment to Alt. 3 
position to Alternate 4 and moves the member in Alternate 4 to Alternate 
3) 

Res. #2009-96  Authorizing Payout of Terminal Leave (J. Jackson, unused 
vacation & personal time $2,708.60) 

Res. #2009-97  Approval of Taxi, Limousine & Operator’s Licenses for 2009 
(Annual approval) 

Res.  #2009-98  Authorization for the Refund of Taxes ( One refund to mortgage 
company who made a double payment) 

Res. #2009-99,  Resolution Approving Project Proposal Between Hatch Mott 



 Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - March 16, 2009 
 

 

 Page 5       

MacDonald and the Township of Lower for Engineering Services Related 
to Cape May Canal (Bayshore Road) Outfall Replacement ($11, 200) 

Res. #2009-100,   A Resolution Appointment of Township Manager - Kathleen 
McPherson  

Ord. #2009-05  An Ordinance of the Township of Lower Authorizing the Acquisition and Conveyance of 
Block 410.01, Lots 72.01, 72.04, and 72.05 (the “Property”) 1st. rdg. (2nd rdg & public 
hearing March 30, 2009) Authorizes Township to convey its interest in 
Block 410.01 Lots 72.01, 72.02, 72.04 & 72.05 to County after purchase 
through Green Acres Funding) 

 
 
 
Councilmember Douglass  motioned to adopt the consent agenda, seconded by Councilmember 
Conrad.  The consent agenda was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember 
Conrad, “yes”, Councilmember Mazurek, “yes”, Councilmember Douglass, “yes”, Deputy Mayor  
Lare, “yes”, Mayor Beck , “yes”. 
 
 Regular Agenda 
Ord. #2009-3,  An Ordinance Amending the Code of the Township of Lower, Section 3-

41,  Mayor’s 
 Advisory Board, (Reestablishes the Mayor’s Advisory Board with  9 members)  was presented 
for  2nd reading and final adoption. The Clerk announced the ordinance was posted and 
published according to law and copies were available in the Clerk’s Office. 
Mayor Beck opened the meeting for public comment.  
There were no comments from the public. 
Councilmember Lare motioned to adopt the consent agenda, seconded by Councilmember 
Mazurek.  The consent agenda was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember 
Conrad, “yes”, Councilmember Mazurek, “yes”, Councilmember Douglass, “yes”, Deputy Mayor  
Lare, “yes”, Mayor Beck, “yes”. 

 
Ord. #2009-4,  An Ordinance To Exceed the Municipal Budget Appropriation Limits and 

to Establish a 
Cape Bank, (Required by State to be adopted prior to budget adoption & permits Township to 
increase the 2 ½ % cap  by 1% if necessary and permits the banking the unused excess)  was 
presented for  2nd reading and final adoption.  The Clerk announced the ordinance was posted 
and published according to law and copies were available in the Clerk’s Office. 
Mayor Beck opened the meeting for public comment.  
There were no comments from the public. 
Councilmember Mazurek motioned to adopt the consent agenda, seconded by Councilmember 
Conrad.  The consent agenda was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember 
Conrad, “yes”, Councilmember Mazurek, “yes”, Councilmember Douglass, “yes”, Deputy Mayor  
Lare, “yes”, Mayor Beck , “yes”. 
 
Administrative Reports  
2008 Annual Report on Variances Approved by the Zoning Board 
Departmental Reports - February 2009 - Animal Control, Code Enforcement, Construction 
Official, Clerk’s Office, Dog Licenses, Fire Safety, Municipal Court, MUA, Tax Collector, Vital 



 Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - March 16, 2009 
 

 

 Page 6       

Statistics 
Manager’s Budget Message (available Monday) 
 
 Council Comments 
Deputy Mayor Lare said there were some good points brought up as in the CAP you couldn’t 
raise taxes above it.  He didn’t feel you could get to a 0% increase.  He said he would present 
some suggestions at the March 30th meeting.  He said the Solicitor was looking into the legal 
issues with the Adopt a Road Program and if anyone was interested they could get in touch with 
the Clerk.  
Mayor Beck said to have their applications into the Clerk by March 25th for the Mayor’s Advisory 
Board.  He said he could appoint someone to take his place when he couldn’t make the 
Planning Board meetings and he would be appointing John Walker as his designee on April 6th. 
Mayor Beck said there was a good turnout on Saturday for the South Jersey Gas informational 
meeting. 
 
 
 
 
8:05 Public Comments 
 
Bob Rizzo of Mickles Run said remember there was over 10% unemployment and suggested 
the Police sell the motorcycle. 
Joe Winters asked if the MAB meetings would be open. 
Ed Butler questioned Resolution #2009-96 and asked if it was the final payment for the former 
Manager and then that would be done. 
Manager McPherson said yes.    
Mr. Butler thanked Council for the open session on the consent agenda and said it was a great 
thing.  He said to take a look at the Recreation Department he said their cost were out of hand. 
John Herman of North Cape May said he would like to throw his hat in the ring for the Mayor’s 
Advisory Board. 
 
Res. #2009-101,    A Resolution Providing for a Meeting Not Open to the Public in Accordance 
with the Provisions of the New Jersey Open Public Meetings Act, N.J.S.A. 10:4-12 (Matters 
relating to Public Safety and property, Attorney Client Privilege) 
Councilmember Conrad motioned to adopt the consent agenda, seconded by Councilmember 
Douglass.  The consent agenda was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember 
Conrad, “yes”, Councilmember Mazurek, “yes”, Councilmember Douglass, “yes”, Deputy Mayor  
Lare, “yes”, Mayor Beck , “yes”.   
 
 CLOSED SESSION SEPARATE 
 
Council returned to open session and there being no further comment, Councilmember Conrad  
motioned to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Councilmember Douglass  the meeting 
unanimously adjourned by verbal “ayes” at 8:45 p.m. 
 
 
 
 



 Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - March 16, 2009 
 

 

 Page 7       

__________________________    __________________________ 
           Mayor       Township Clerk 
 
 
 
 

Approved: April 6, 2009 


